NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
B —_ZTE=F=A=1—HULFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda under The Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda as an exempted company and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16.

In March 20083, the directors determined to abandon the Group’s satellite
communication and stage construction businesses . Details of the
discontinuing operations are set out in note 6.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a number of
new and revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP(s)”)
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format of presentation of the cash
flow statement and the statement of changes in equity, but has had no
material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting years.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign currency transaction” have eliminated
the choice of translating the income statements of overseas subsidiaries/
associates at the closing rate for the year, the policy previously followed
by the Group. They are now required to be translated at an average rate.
This change in accounting policy has not had any material effect on the
results for the current or prior accounting periods.

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow
statements”. Under SSAP 15 (Revised), cash flows are classified under
three headings — operating, investing and financing, rather than the
previous five headings. Interest paid, interest and dividends received, and
dividend paid, which were previously presented under a separate heading,
are classified as operating or financing, investing and financing cash flows
respectively. Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified with investing
or financing activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continued)

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34 “Employee benefits”,
which introduces measurement rules for employee benefits, including
retirement benefit schemes. The principal effect of the implementation of
SSAP 34 is in connection with the recognition of costs for the Group’s
defined benefit retirement benefit scheme. In prior years, actuarial
valuations were carried out every three years. Actuarial gains and losses
and past service cost were spread systematically over the expected
remaining working lives of existing employees, irrespective of the dates
of vesting.

Under SSAP 34, actuarial valuations are being carried out annually.
Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent. of the greater of
the present value of the Group’s pension obligations and the fair value of
scheme assets are amortised over the expected average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the scheme. Past service
cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the amended benefits become vested.

The adoption of SSAP 34 has not had any material impact on the financial
statements.

Discontinuing operations

SSAP 33 “Discontinuing operations” is concerned with the presentation
of financial information regarding discontinuing operations and replaces
the requirements previously included in SSAP 2 “Net profit or loss for the
period, fundamental errors and changes in accounting policies”. Under
SSAP 33, financial statement amounts relating to the discontinuing
operation are disclosed separately from the point at which either a binding
sale agreement is entered into or a detailed plan for the discontinuance
is announced. The adoption of SSAP 33 has resulted in the identification
of the Group’s satellite communication and stage construction businesses
as discontinuing operations in the current year, details of which are
disclosed at note 6.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified for the revaluation of certain properties and
investments in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in line
with those used by other members of the Company.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary and
associate are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is
included within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.

On disposal of a business, including a subsidiary or an associate, the
attributable amount of unamortised goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal of the business.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet
at cost less any identified impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of its associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associates plus goodwill arising from acquisition of
associates in so far as it has not already been amortised, less any
identified impairment loss.

Properties held for development

Properties held for development with the intention for holding for long-term
purposes when completed, or where no decision has yet been made on
their purposes, are included in the balance sheet as non-current assets
and stated at cost, less any identified impairment loss.

Intangible assets

The cost of patents is amortised on a straight line basis over the shorter
of the periods in respect of which the related benefits are expected to be
received or 20 years. The carrying value is reviewed annually.

The cost of technical know-how is amortised on a straight line basis over
its expected useful life.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are
initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the
expressed intention and ability to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity debt
securities) are measured at amortised cost, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of
any discount or premium arising on the acquisition of a held-to-maturity
security is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the
term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period
represents a constant yield on the investment.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as
investment securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term
strategic purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost,
as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and
losses included in net profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are charged to the income statement by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as
measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to estimated
total costs for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When a contract covers a number of assets, the construction of each asset
is treated as a separate contract when separate proposals have been
submitted for each asset, each asset has been separately negotiated and
the costs and revenues of each asset can be separately identified. A group
of contracts, performed concurrently or in a continuous sequence, is
treated as a single construction contract when they were negotiated as a
single package and are so closely inter-related that they constitute a single
project with an overall profit margin.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as
amounts due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the contract work
is performed are included in the balance sheet as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed, but not yet paid by the
customer, are included in the balance sheet within trade and other
receivables.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average cost method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress are
stated at cost or valuation less depreciation or amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by paragraph
80 of SSAP 17 “Property, plant and equipment” from the requirement to
make revaluation on a regular basis of the Group’s land and buildings
which had been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30th September, 1995
and accordingly, no further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out.
On the subsequent sale of assets, the attributable revaluation surplus not
yet transferred to retained profits in prior years is transferred to retained
profits.

The cost or valuation of freehold land is not amortised.

The cost or valuation of leasehold land is amortised over the term of the lease.

The cost or valuation of buildings is depreciated over their estimated useful
lives of 8 to 60 years using the straight line method.

Construction in progress are carried at cost less impairment loss, if any.
Cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Furniture and fixtures 25%

Leasehold improvements 25%

Plant, machinery and equipment 12'/>2% to 33'/5%
Motor vehicles 33"/3%

Audio equipment 12'2%

Lighting equipment 12'2%

Antenna and antenna control equipment 10% to 12'/2%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another SSAP, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as revaluation decrease under that SSAP.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another SSAP, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that SSAP.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets
concern to the Group. Assets held under finance leases are capitalised
at their fair value at the dates of acquisition. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as obligations under finance
leases. The finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
finance leases commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
charged to the income statement over the term of the relevant lease so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the rentals are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease term.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for each contract.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that they have been agreed with the customers. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised when the services are
rendered, the revenue can be reliably estimated and it is probable that
the revenue will be received.

Interest income from loans is recognised in the income statement as it
accrues except in the case of receivables which are deemed to be doubtful
at which stage interest accrual ceases.

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest rates
applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right
to receive payment has been established.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions or at the contracted
settlement rate, if applicable. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in net profit
or loss for the year.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the
period in which the operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted
for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise
from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items of income and
expense in a different accounting period from that in which they are
recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences,
computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in
the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or
an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit scheme, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses which exceed 10 per cent. of the greater of the present value
of the Group’s defined benefit obligation and the fair value of scheme
assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working lives
of the participating employees. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
amended benefits become vested.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial
gains and losses and unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by
the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation
is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

4. TURNOVER 4.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31st March, 2003 analysed by
principal activity are as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts in respect of:  EES M Z WA :
— design, manufacture and sale of - RE - HERHEREEFERZ
custom-built electroplating machinery BRI 2 B
and other industrial machinery
— stage construction and arts production - ZRREREMEE
— arts performance and social functions — REBINE L REBED
Sale of goods EmiHE
Interest income from money lending HARER 2 FI SR
Provision of services R 7% 42
— repairs and maintenance - HBERRE
— satellite communication —BEBH
5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5.

Business segments

The Group is mainly engaged in electroplating equipment business, wet
processing equipment business, entertainment production business, timber
trading and satellite communication business, and operate under five
divisions. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
primary segment information.

= 2
DTFASE-—ZEE=F=A=+—HLEER
EERETEXKEN D 2 EEBRMADN ¢

2003 2002
—22=H —ERCF
HK$ HK$

BT BT
299,944,961 263,847,777
14,313,200 15,087,762
16,730,671 34,589,862
42,232,591 9,105,118
1,150,962 4,555,353
8,923,156 5,656,316
1,932,390 2,926,484
385,227,931 335,768,672

¥R ETSIE

ES Sk

REBETERBSHERBEL > BREERE
X REBUFER - AMEBREEBAE
o WA REEIFILE c ZE I TIARE
BERFESFERMEZEE -

Principal activities are as follows: FTEEBMAMNT ¢

Electroplating equipment - design, manufacturing and sale of electroplating equipment

BIERE - Rt~ EEREESHERE

Wet processing equipment = design, manufacturing and sale of custom-built horizontal wet processing and
automation machinery

BRARERE - Rt - £ERHEERBEFERZATFRNRAEER B B

Entertainment production - provision of stage construction and arts productions

IRGEBIAE - REZEEZERBMEE

Timber trading - trading of logged timber

IZE S - AES

Satellite communication = provision of satellite communication services

HEBHA - RMEEEEARKE

The Group is in the process of discontinuing its satellite communication
and stage construction operations.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

EBERGBETSESE @
B0 8 (@

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 5.

Business segments (continued)

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003

HE—ZTE=—F=ZHA=+—-HUFEZWKz=HK

Wet
Electroplating  processing Satellite Entertainment Timber Other
equipment  equipment communication  production trading  operations  Elimination Consolidated
3 E T EERE HEEH BRASUE NS Hin % Eapl g8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT ET BT ET BT BT

TURNOVER gx8
External sales HAHE 185,242,321 133,342,460 1,932,390 32,867,371 30,228,318 1,615,071 - 385,227,931
Inter-segment sales FHZEHEE 18,610 958,516 - - - - (977,126) -
Total fage 185,260,931 134,300,976 1,932,390 32,867,371 30,228,318 1,615,071 (977,126) 385,227,931
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing 2Bz EHENZEH

market rates. 2R R E o
RESULTS ES |
Segment results TEER (12,229,975)  (12,218,877)  (35,267,666)  (8,300,492) (10,905,512) (26,293,549) 8,441,846  (96,774,225)
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 84,229
Unallocated corporate expenses RABEERX (20,414,938)
Impairment loss recognised on investment EERENE

securities (5,640,000)
Net unrealised loss on other investments Rt EREEHE (29,396,772)
Net realised loss on other investments HtRECERER (1,633,399)
Finance costs BERK (5,686,608)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of KEHENGMEE

gooduwill arising on acquisition of HEZERIAE

an associate (557,000)
Share of results of an associate NG ] (3,243,027)
Loss before taxation REAER (163,261,740)
Taxation charge REXH 495,178
Loss after taxation RBEABR (163,756,918)
Minority interests LYRRER 5,960,828
Net loss for the year rEERER (157,796,090
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003

5.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 5, ¥XRMHEMEIE @
Business segments (continued) XKD @)
OTHER INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2003 BE—EE=F=-A=1+—HILFEZEME
#
Wet
Electroplating  processing Satellite Entertainment Timber Other
equipment equipment communication  production trading operations Consolidated
RAEE
EHERE R HEBR RS SUE ANES Hit 37 &R
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
E BT BT B B 7 7
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REERE 2,499,971 646,098 - - - 20,055,241 23,201,310
Bad debts recovered BEER 7,559,472 - - - - - 7,559,472
Capital additions ERER 1,021,444 57,674 869,996 13,004 - 36,508 1,998,626
Depreciation and amortisation ERBH
5,102,610 5,253,024 1,273,356 2,690,553 2,160,929 1,071,440 17,551,912
Loss on disposal of discontinuing RETRESEEY
operations ZER - - 584,023 586,935 - - 1,170,958
Loss on resumption of properties held for BFKEFERR
development by government MEZEE - - - - - 2,080,512 2,080,512
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ¥ - BERRERZ
property, plant and equipment ZHE 1,907,324 = 30,792,931 = = - 32,700,255
Impairment loss recognised in respect of H{EREMEZ
properties held for development EREZRE - - - - - 2,540,000 2,540,000
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FUEHBAFAMEE
goodwill arising on acquisition of HEZERIRE
subsidiaries - - - 1,492,883 9,166,205 - 10,659,088
BALANCE SHEET AT 31ST MARCH, 2003 BI—FE=F=-f=1—-—HZEELEX
Wet
Electroplating  processing Satellite Entertainment Timber Other
equipment equipment communication  production trading operations Consolidated
RAERE
BERE B HEBA IR EE AHES Hib %% o]
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT BT BT BT
ASSETS E
Segment assets SEEE 212,565,478 212,712,242 14,757,327 14,899,567 2,004,773 26,515,684 483,455,071
Unallocated corporate assets ROBMEEEE 35,691,868
Consolidated total assets BABEE 519,146,939
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities PEEE 97,173,042 74,043,630 16,342,045 4,127,379 403,162 10,851,022 202,940,280
Unallocated corporate liabilities RABMLEEE 97,916,820
Consolidated total liabilities SABERE 300,857,100
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#

5.

PR R EE

TN AR ERA R

“REC=FER

EET=F=HA=+—HILFE
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued) 5. ¥BRMETSIE @
Business segments (continued) XKD @)
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2002 BE_EE_F=FA=1—HIFEZK=mK
Wet
Electroplating processing Satellite  Entertainment Timber Other
equipment equipment - communication production trading operations  Elimination ~ Consolidated
EfRE RERE HEEH RESUE KR HfbH i &4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
TURNOVER 3]
External sales HMEE 163,319,846 111,300,876 2,926,484 52,382,774 886,348 4,952,344 - 335,768,672
Inter-segment sales PP EHE 4,009 314,589 - 6,830 - - (325,428) -
Total age 163,323,855 111,615,465 2,926,484 52,389,604 886,348 4,952,344 (325,428) 335,768,672
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing ARz BHEENRER
market rates. PAE %5 )
RESULTS E3 |
Segment results FEEE (77,042275)  (19311,992)  (34,640355) 1514637 (26695496) (8977.741) 7,417,948 (157,735274)
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 345,142
Unallocated corporate expenses RAMEERE (25,024,459)
Impairment loss recognised on investment ESREAE
securities (500,000)
Net unrealised gain on other investments Hit RERER K& 1,328,645
Net realised loss on other investments HtRECEEER (155,942)
Finance costs REMK (7,119,651)
Gain on partial disposal of a subsidiary HERBD R HH
ERfEhE 44,441,301
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RELEHBAT
pd 3 (37,700)
Share of results of an associate EhEEATIBE (1,085,186)
Loss before taxation BB IER (145,543,124)
Taxation credit RERE (1,390,621
Loss after taxation BHkEE (144,152,503)
Minority interests DERRER 11,775,528
Net loss for the year rEEFFA (132,376,975)
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5.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Business segments (continued)
OTHER INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2002

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill arising on acquisition of

a subsidiary

REREE
BAER
FEREH

n% - BERRE
ZEBZREE
WEENEARMES
BEzEERRE

BALANCE SHEET AT 31ST MARCH, 2002

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in associates

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

5. ¥BRMHETSIE #&
E 35k RC )
B —FE_F-A=+—HIFEZEME
#
Wet
Electroplating processing Satellite Entertainment Timber Other
equipment equipment communication production trading operations  Consolidated
RARE
EHRE &M BEBEH RERUE AHES Hi 4e
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT by BT BT BT
18,301,069 3,634,867 = = - 10,512,232 32,448,168
4,736,279 12,197,908 4,583,594 162,892 = 1,405,023 23,085,696
6,442,619 5,243,666 1,598,550 2,708,877 4,773,748 1,016,698 21,784,158
= - 27,300,000 = = - 27,300,000
= = = - 22,000,000 - 22,000,000
BE-—ZT-_F-A=+-—HzEEEEX
Wet
Electroplating processing Satellite Entertainment Timber Other
equipment equipment communication production trading operations  Consolidated
RIAEE
BHRE R M BEBEH RERE AHES Hitni Ga
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BT BT BT BT BT
223,075,032 203,189,244 50,086,633 24,323,732 4,773 70,687,612 571,367,026
3,874,291
75,751,474
650,992,791
90,127,086 42,749,636 15,658,888 5,920,698 403,162 10,416,706 165,276,176
97,385,538
262,661,714
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”), Taiwan, Europe, North America and other

Asia countries.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by

geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services.

Hong Kong BB

PRC mh B K pE

Taiwan =01

Europe UM

North America b =M

South East Asia (other than Korea) HittRmmthE (EER)
Japan and Korea HAKR#EE

Others Hith

Revenues from the Group’s discontinuing satellite communication and

stage construction operations were derived principally from Hong Kong

in both years.

TN AR ERA R
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RX¥RMETIEDE @
&5 0 |

FAEBZEBEIBURES  PEARKNE
(TREARED - &% BN - LENRE A
ML E -

TRAFAEERBEDTSED (THERZR
Ei) ZSHEDI ¢

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF

HK$ HK$

#EBr BT
54,835,079 65,023,853
100,567,099 80,029,244
87,278,694 66,898,173
19,920,666 24,301,562
23,847,404 21,315,280
55,780,074 30,875,591
23,806,934 32,586,440
19,191,981 14,738,529
385,227,931 335,768,672

AEETSERENEEBANELREXRH
HWAEBEIMFETRREETE °
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,

and additions to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,

analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Hong Kong BiE
PRC AR Bl K fE
Taiwan =P
Others Hty

¥R RHMERSSE @)
WEMSEDE @)

PHEERABEURYE  BERIERER
EEABREEZBHES

Carrying
amount of

segment assets

PAHTANT

Additions to property,
plant and equipment
and intangible assets

BENTX - BER

PEEEREE RERELEE
At At Year ended Year ended
31.3.2003 31.3.2002 31.3.2003 31.3.2002
—EBE=F —EBECF —EE=F —EEF
=A=+—8 =HB=+—H =BA=+-—d =BA=+—8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT ET B
191,762,140 296,649,635 1,014,405 8,373,553
99,759,678 121,440,111 704,831 2,179,356
214,695,693 205,050,096 57,674 12,197,908
12,929,428 27,852,949 221,716 334,879
519,146,939 650,992,791 1,998,626 23,085,696
AEERFESENTEBRANELSRENE

The assets of the Group’s discontinuing satellite communication and stage

construction operations were located in Hong Kong in both years.

ASIATELE-NET AND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION LIMITED
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
B —_ZTE=F=HA=1—HULFE

6. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS 6. THENMKEXER

In March 20083, the directors determined to abandon the Group’s satellite

communication and stage construction businesses. The satellite

communication operation is anticipated to cease operation by July 2003
and it is anticipated that the stage construction operation will be
permanently ceased by September 2003.

The results of the satellite communication and the stage construction

businesses for the year were as follows:

R-ZEZ=F=H EZRENELELREE
ZEEBMREREEEK -BHEEBEME
BE-ZE=FtARKRILLKE  ZHEFTER
BEXEREBR_ST=FNABKALLEK

PO

IS

BEBNRECRERBNFRNZEENT ¢

Satellite communication

Stage construction

FHEBM ZEEE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE=F —EECHF =F —EE-F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET ET ET BT
Turnover =20 1,932,390 2,926,484 14,313,200 15,087,762
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,885,280) (3,937,765) (6,725,889) (6,753,220)
Gross (loss) profit (£#8) =5 (952,890) (1,011,281) 7,587,311 8,334,542
Other operating income Hih & WA 1,151,891 465,692 6,288 74,553
Distribution costs 2 88 B AR (216) (34,668) (161,276) (194,770)
Administrative expenses THEHR (1,995,212) (5,697,980) (6,625,883) (7,358,760)
Other operating expenses Hih& e & A (222,361) (60,718) - -
Impairment loss recognised in ¥ 3% - BE KR & E
respect of property, plant and 2 BERBE
equipment (30,792,931) (27,300,000) - -
(Loss) profit from operations KeE (E1E) &8 (32,811,719)  (33,638,955) 806,440 855,565
Finance costs =N (1,013,793) (54,787) (21) (23,403)
Loss on disposal of EETIHFESE X
discontinuing operations ZEi8 (584,023) - (586,935) -
(Loss) profit before taxation FrEiAlr (E518) &l (34,409,535)  (33,693,742) 219,484 832,162
Taxation charge BEXH - - (97,053) (258,652)
Net (loss) profit after taxation — BRFiE (EIEFHE) AR (34,409,535)  (33,693,742) 122,431 573,510
Minority interests DR RER - - 259,692 532,233
(34,409,535)  (33,693,742) (137,261) 41,277
43
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZF=1—HLFE

6.

DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the discontinuing
satellite communication and stage construction operations are as follows:

Satellite communication

THENKEER @
TRHESECHERNMREAREERKCERE
HEBZREBENT :

Stage construction

wEER BORE
2002 2003 2002
—®¥=F C-TF-F -FF=F -FT=F
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
Total assets REE 14,757,327 50,086,633 11,810,639 12,711,216
Total liabilities REE 23,566,795 26,496,013 3,172,254 4,722,061

During the year, the satellite communication operation utilised
HK$3,355,429 (2002: HK$5,611,473) of the Group’s net operating cash
flows, received HK$3,191,141 (2002: paid HK$3,753,216) in respect of
investing activities and paid HK$3,612,375 (2002: HK$3,612,375) in
respect of financing activities.

The loss arising from the discontinuing satellite communication operation
amounted to HK$584,023. No tax charge or credit arose from the
transaction.

During the year, the stage construction operation contributed HK$789,166
(2002: HK$2,600,309) to the Group’s net operating cash flows, received
HK$87,541 (2002: paid HK$70,655) in respect of investing activities.
During the year ended 31st March, 2002, the stage construction operation
paid HK$710,008 in respect of financing activities.

The loss arising from the discontinuing of the stage construction operation
amounted to HK$586,935. No tax charge or credit arose from the
transaction.
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3,612,375/ 7T) °

TRHECEFERMEBELE 2 BRE
584,023 T c R EEE T MAHREZ HR
Bm o

FR - BEAEEEBALEBERLEERER
2 F%58789,166/8 T (ZEZ 4 : 2,600,309
HBIT) 0 BIREEKUES7 541B T (ZEE S
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

7. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 7. REERE
2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from operations has been arrived at after KEFBEENKRAN (BmE)
charging and (crediting): T5H&E:
Auditors’ remuneration RERE < 1,365,356 1,573,225
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH
Depreciation and amortisation of property, ME - BERREEZ
plant and equipment on: ER#E
Owned assets BEEE 13,739,811 15,192,534
Assets held under finance leases REMEREREEE 1,080,562 1,168,482
Amortisation of goodwill arising on acquisitions WENBARMEERE
of subsidiaries (included in administrative ZEE GIATHER)
expenses) 2,658,757 5,334,543
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in BEEE2H#E GIATHRER)
administrative expenses) 10,893 26,710
Amortisation of goodwill on acquisition of an W E N B TEERE 2 EH
associate (included in administrative expenses) GtATTHER) 61,889 61,889
17,551,912 21,784,158
Write off of intangible assets (included in BREENME (FFATHER)
administrative expenses) 25,076 —
Operating lease payments in respect of: BRZKEROTE !
Rented premises HAME 1,397,909 1,937,096
Plant and machinery R % et 470,660 920,022
Allowance for slow moving inventories REEE 4,421,459 1,611,875
Net exchange loss (gain) HBHOEE (KR) 408,806 (920,345)
Staff costs: BEEM :
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) ZEEME (K7 8) 8,067,264 8,249,264
Salaries and allowances R R 96,062,196 117,478,294
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes BAREFIFHEIR R 3,251,930 3,552,477
107,381,390 129,280,035
Interest earned on bank deposits RITERMERE (94,966) (787,606)
Other interest income HF 2 WA (76,416) (208,562)
Dividend income [3=N N
— Listed -k (8,403) (183,207)
— Unlisted -¥E - (14,008)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEY % - BERREH WS (1,233,975) (164,238)
Gain on disposal of investment securities HEXRSREN R - (501,437)
45
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.
Directors =
Directors’ fees: EEHwE
Executive HTES
Non-executive FHITES
Other emoluments to executive directors: HITESHMMS :
Salaries and other benefits FeRHEMER
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes BIRGE FIET B AR

No compensation was paid to any directors of the Company during the
year for the loss of office as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
None of the directors of the Company has waived any emoluments during
the year.

Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z% 7T — 1,000,000 & T
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & JT — 4,000,000 /& JT
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 Jt — 4,500,000 & T

46

EEKEEMS
2003 2002
—sg=f —EE=F
HKS HKS
BT #7
180,000 180,000
7,863,264 8,043,264
24,000 26,000
8,067,264 8,249,264

AABRFRAREQAEAAXDES A ER
EALARMBARESHE ZHE - FAL
BESHREMHE -

EEMEZRBIWT ¢

Number of directors

EEA
2003 2002
—EE=F =FE=F
3 3
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.

(continued)
Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, two

(2002: two) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are

included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three

(2002: three) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes

HFERHMBER
R E R ET BIERK

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:

Bank borrowings wholly repayable within
five years

Bank borrowings with instalments repayable
beyond five years

Finance leases

Other loan

Loan from a director

Less: Interest capitalised to construction
in progress

TN AR ERA R

Z 8T — 1,000,000 % 7T
1,000,001 # Tt — 1,500,000 % T
1,500,001 # T — 2,000,000 % 7T

FMEZH
ARAFREHEEZRTHE
REFRABRZOHRITEE
MERS

HBE R
EFER

MR RERIBREALRE
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—EZ=EFR

EENEEME @

(3]
AEETERSHESREMNUAATES
(ZZ222F ) - AEMESFREN L
X BT=UBEHES (CTZF=F : =)
ZBEFEWT -

2003 2002
St SLE
HKS$ HKS

B BT
3,245,522 4,206,322
36,000 208,918
3,281,522 4,415,240

LT =UHESHES 2FHMRBMT :

Number of employees

EEAH

2003 2002
—ge=% —EE=F
1 —

2 1

- 2

il & B A

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$

E ET
2,637,357 4,229,362
1,835,916 2,598,147
105,416 120,856
1,438,268 884,743
67,123 s
6,084,080 7,833,108
(397,472) (713,457)

5,686,608 7,119,651
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

10. TAXATION CHARGE (CREDIT) 10.

11.

The taxation charge (credit) comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax =B RSB

Charge for the year TEEZH

Overprovision in prior years DEFEBERE
Overseas taxation BINBLIE

Charge for the year AEEXH

Credit for the year REERE

Under(over)provision in prior years DUEFETEERE (BF)
Deferred taxation (note 32) BELEBE (et 32)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2002: 16%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

LOSS PER SHARE 11.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the following data:

Loss for the purposes of basic loss per share sTE&EREXREE

Number/weighted average number of shares T EESREREE
for the purposes of basic loss per share 2 InREF I IR E

No diluted loss per share has been presented because the exercise price
of the Company’s options was higher than the market price of shares for
both years.
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BiIE 37 H ()
ZHE R (EE) 81F
2003 2002
—EE=F —ERECF
HK$ HK$
B BT
249,000 612,000
(128,133) (123,636)
120,867 488,364
528,322 604,572
= (1,533,675)
7,989 (19,979)
536,311 (949,082)
(162,000) (929,903)
495,178 (1,390,621)

REFERHEBRNGSH RS ZH 2 (5T FER
BEFIZ16%5TE o (ZEZEZF : 16%) 8
HBEAZREERGEEES B 2B EGTE -

ZRER

BREREEDEAT HIENE
2003 2002
—EF=F =FF=F
HKS$ HK$
B B
(157,796,090) (132,376,975)
5,529,268,000 5,397,944,493

RO EMEFE - ADRBREZTEERD
BERS  MLES|IBEAHELE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PR R EE

12 Y% > BERRKRE

Plant, Antenna and
machinery antenna
Furniture and control
Construction  Land and and Leasehold equipment equipment
in  buildings fixtures improvements M5 Motor Audio  Lighting  HEX&
progress 1 B b MWK  vehicles equipment equipment RHE Total
ERIR REF REE  NEEB ®E RE  BERE  BARE HRE A
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
THE GROUP r&
COST OR VALUATION BAS G E
At 1st April, 2002 RZEZ-§NA-A 54,761,477 191,180,900 12,720,352  3,465445 68,522,581 12,000,363 7,766,486 6,879,067 20,000,400 377,297,071
Currency realignment MR - (4977,086)  (255621) 64253 (1,102,933)  (78,335) - - - (6,349,6%)
Additions BE 397,472 291,920 209,996 65,270 499,416 62,028 - - 472,524 1,998,626
Disposals e - - (91406)  (150,561) (1,081,451)  (437423) - - (3757,194) (5518,035)
At 31st March, 2003 RIBZ=F=F=F-H 55158949 186495764 12583321 3,444,407 66,837,613 11,546,633 7,766,486 6,879,067 16,715,730 367,427,970
COMPRISING B
At cost A 55,158,949 101,995,764 12,583,321 3,444,407 66,837,613 11,546,633 7,766,486 6,879,067 16,715,730 282,927,970
At valuation — fhE-
31st March, 1992 -AAZE=B=+-H - 43,000,000 = = = = = = - 43,000,000
31st March, 1994 -AARE=A=+-H - 41,500,000 = = = = = = - 41,500,000
55,158,949 186,495,764 12,583,321 3,444,407 66,837,613 11,546,633 7,766,486 6,879,067 16,715,730 367,427,970
DEPRECIATION, e BERAESR
AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2002 R-EE-ENA-H 27,300,000 19,545,661 8,105,304 2,471,711 43,819,559 8,882,805 4,368,648 4,284,224 2,329,778 121,107,690
Currency realignment BEER - (202,573)  (138,533) - (343,200) (74,280) - - - (758,586)
Provided for the year REEER - 3,761,945 968,588 100,434 5,759,387 1,063,916 1,132,612 864,947 1,168,544 14,820,373
Impairment loss recognised = FEHfE
for the year 13,554,305 = 522,818 840,619 746,850 61,061 = - 16,974,602 32,700,255
Eliminated on disposals RSB - = (86,743)  (84,691)  (935586)  (400,097) - - (3757,194) (5.264,311)
At 31st March, 2003 W-BE=F=A=1+-H 40,854,305 23105033 9,371,434 3328073 49,047,010 9,533,405  5501,260 5,149,171 16,715,730 162,605,421
NET BOOK VALUES SREFE
At 31st March, 2003 RIBZ=F=F=1-H 14,304,644 163,390,731 3,211,887 116,334 17,790,603 2,013,228 2265226 1,729,896 - 204,822,549
At 31st March, 2002 RIBZ-E=F=1-H 27,461,477 171,635239 4,615,048 993,734 24,703,022 3,117,558 3,397,838 2,594,843 17,670,622 256,189,381
49
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 Y% - BERRE @
During the year, due to the stagnant development of the satellite HABEBAEERRERERA  EBRNFR
telecommunication business, the directors reassessed the recoverable REBEREMA 2 FHEBEMEGEBMER
amount of the major assets of its satellite communication business with IE EEZUWEMEE ERULEMR 5
reference to the net selling price at the date of reassessment. Based on RRAEABE FAZREEERRY
this reassessment, the directors considered impairment was required to 32,700,000 7T » T ERFEBAXEHKER °

be recognised. The impairment loss recognised for the year of
approximately HK$32.7 million was mainly related to the satellite
telecommunication business.

The net book value of land and buildings and construction in progress At REFREZIRZREFEERE
shown above comprises:

Construction

Land and buildings in progress (note)
T RESEY EEIR (Fa)
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BE=F —EEF —BE=F —EE_F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
HET Vo BT HET
Medium-term leasehold land EBBZHH
and buildings in Hong Kong &t REF 34,791,870 35,582,596 14,304,644 27,461,477
Freehold land and buildings in: KA ZE#E+ i RIEF :
Taiwan =D 77,967,460 84,199,603 - —
United Kingdom HE 2,806,000 2,836,500 - —
Medium-term leasehold EPEARENEZ
land in the PRC FRERFE 40 + b 47,825,401 49,016,540 - =
163,390,731 171,635,239 14,304,644 27,461,477
Note: Construction in progress represented the site under construction for the BtaE - EEIE#E‘ZF%%EE%R%?T%IEEL&%
Group’s satellite communication business. At 31st March, 2003, interest Pz e AZEE=F=A=+—H -
expenses capitalised in construction in progress amounted to approximately RERZEEIRFSEA 32%]1%3,646,000;%
HK$3,646,000 (2002: HK$3,249,000). Subsequent to the balance sheet date, T (ZZZ"F :3,249,000/87w) - &£EH
the entire site was surrendered to the lessor of the site as a consequence of % BHRTEECHELEHEBRMEL
abandonment of the Group’s satellite communication business. WMEEBBERBEZMBZHAA o
The net book value of property, plant and equipment includes an amount Y% - RERZE 2RO FESFERERMER
of HK$705,485 (2002: HK$1,715,064) in respect of assets held under EfMBEET05,485B L (Z T —F !
finance leases. 1,715,064/ 7T) °
Had the land and buildings been carried at cost less accumulated HTHREFEURERRZRETEREEA
depreciation and amortisation, the carrying value of the land and buildings Bk > Ltib &ET’—ZEEEE{E%’N%,BSSJOM%
would have been stated at HK$135,855,704 (2002: HK$138,949,000). JT(ZZEZE 4 © 138,949,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
B —_ZTE=F=A=1—HULFE

PR R EE

13. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

14.

Properties held for development, at cost
Less: Impairment loss recognised

FEBRRAE - ERAE
. ERRE

During the year, the directors of the Group conducted a review of the

Group’s land held for development and determined that the land was

impaired as a consequence of persistent sluggish property market.
Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$2,540,000 (2002: nil) has been
recognised in respect of land held for development. The land has been

written down to its estimated recoverable amount, being the anticipated

net sales proceeds from the development of the land.

The land is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium-term lease.

No interest expense was capitalised in the cost of land held for

development up to the balance sheet date.

GOODWILL

COST
At 1st April, 2002 and 31st March, 2003

AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1st April, 2002

Charge for the year
Impairment loss recognised for the year

At 31st March, 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2003

At 31st March, 2002

TN AR ERA R

13.

BIERRYE
THE GROUP
AEE
2003 2002
—EB=F —EECHF
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
16,435,761 19,613,373
(2,540,000) -
13,895,761 19,613,373

AEEEERNFRAHANEEFEERE L E
TRE > WEE L RAYETSFEREN
FRE - Bt XEECHRSEERRE LR

RIR{E2,540,000/8 T (CEE"F ) o +ih
MR ZE AT AT U B TR EE o BFE A E £ i B
RITBHEREFE -

THUREBLERBEPBEERS -

BEAHER  BEFBRRIRALEGTE
HANSHXBRERN 2D

14. BHE
THE GROUP
58
HK$
BT
2%
R-BEZE_FNA—AR-ZEZFE=F=A=t+—H 45,707,438
B R ERE
R-ZZEZ-_FWAE—H 30,389,593
BN BEREE 2,658,757
NEERIRE 10,659,088
R-ZEZE=F=A=+—H 43,707,438
IREFEE
R-ZZEZ=F=F=+—H 2,000,000
R-ZTZEZE-_F=A=+—H 15,317,845
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

14.

15.

GOODWILL (continued)

The amortisation period adopted for goodwill is from 7 to 10 years.

As a consequence of a change to the original business plan, the Group
reassessed the recoverable amount of its investment in the timber trading
business based on the present value of the expected future revenue arising
from trading of timber, which was derived from discounting the projected
cash flows by an implicit rate of return of 5.5%. Based on this
reassessment, the directors consider an aggregate impairment of
approximately HK$9.2 million is required to be recognised for the goodwill
arising from the acquisition of the subsidiary engaged in the timber trading
business.

As detailed in note 6, the directors determined to abandon the stage
construction operation. Consequently, the directors consider the carrying
amount of goodwill, of approximately HK$1.5 million, arising from the
acquisition of the subsidiary engaged in the stage construction business
are entirely impaired and is required to be charged to the income
statement.

14. BE #®)

BB ZEEBB7-105F -

HREREBFEIGPIRE - RNEBUKRHTE
SERBEEZARRRUERE (LA SEH
RH55%ERARERBIR) HEE  Efh
HREAMEZHEK 2 AJKREFREE - ERUE
Bt EERA  ARBERBREANES X
BHWERARAFMG2AERIABREN
9,200,0007% JT °

RO  EEREREZFAEEX
BoWlt BEERA BEZREENS
1,500,000/ 7T * BB A RIS RESRE
EWBE BB 2 BREI A B W RNER o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

THE GROUP REE

COST AR

At 1st April, 2002 R-ZEZE-_FWA—H
Currency realignment MEFE

Written off i 85

At 31st March, 2003

AMORTISATION

At 1st April, 2002
Currency realignment
Provided for the year
Eliminated on written off

At 31st March, 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2003

At 31st March, 2002

The amortisation periods adopted for patents and technical know-how are

20 and 5 years, respectively.

—EE=F=H=+-—H

R-ZEZ-FWNA—A
HERE
EEEER

T 5 B 4 S

R=ZEZE=5=A=+—H

EEFE
R-ZB=F=A=+-8

R-ZFZE-_F=A=+—H

ASIATELE-NET AND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION LIMITED

. BREE
Technical
Patents know-how Total
SR EHHEM a5
HK$ HK$ HK$
T #E T BT
217,866 79,105 296,971
- 8,334 8,334
- (87,439) (87,439)
217,866 - 217,866
111,344 56,419 167,763
- 5,944 5,944
10,893 - 10,893
- (62,363) (62,363)
122,237 - 122,237
95,629 - 95,629
106,522 22,686 129,208
SRR BRI 2 #HEFH D B R20F K5
$ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bag:E Bk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. MfiE A FER
2003 2002
—EE=F —EE-F
HK$ HK$
/gi /§7E
THE COMPANY PN

Quoted shares, at cost (note (i) EHARRGD ZRAE (HEE() 19,702,937 19,702,937
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss  3F £ 2 BB 9 2 B ANME HI R FEFLRE 2,000,008 18,100,008
Unlisted shares (note (ii)) FELEmATRG (BFEE(i) 47,285,952 47,285,952
Loan to a subsidiary F—REMEB L EZEMK 65,000,000 65,000,000
133,988,897 150,088,897
Market value of quoted shares EHmARRBZHE 32,832,253 65,498,134
The loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest bearing and in the F-ENBERARZERBRBEEAREEENRR
opinion of the directors, will not be repaid within the next twelve months. BEERRZEERBTIERRKRI2EAEE -

Notes: Bk :
(i)  The cost of the quoted shares represents the investment cost of one of the () LEHARRGZEAERAEDBHE A — B

Company’s subsidiaries, Intech Machines Company, Limited, which were
admitted for trading on the Taiwan Over-The-Counter Securities Exchange.

(i)~ The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the values of the (if)
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the Group as at the
date on which the Company became the ultimate holding company of the
Group under the group reorganisation in 1991, less dividends subsequently
distributed from pre-reorganisation reserves of the subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2003 are as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

MELRARE SRR 3L it B

Asia Nice Art Hong Kong
Production Limited B

REDNBEREERAE

Asia Vigour (Holdings) British Virgin
Limited Islands

REREBRES

Asia Vigour Productions Hong Kong
Limited &

BEDNGEEERRAE

ATNT Global Investments Hong Kong
Company Limited e

DNERRRRERRAE

ATNT Group Hong Kong
Management Limited B

DNEREREEARAE

Beijing Golden PAL PRC
Plating Equipment HEARZEANE

Company Limited
(Sino-foreign equity
joint venture)
LIREREERMERAH
(horeag)

ASIATELE-NET AND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION LIMITED

Issued and
fully paid

up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

BBTR
HEREBRA
/ERER

HK$10,000
10,000 & 7T

US$1
1E7T

HK$2
28T

HK$2
28T

HK$2
2787

US$1,291,500
1,291,500 £ T
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16. MiIB A RER @)
UTARATMBRARAR -—SE=F=A=+

— B2

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARRFE R
RAEE
& A
Directly Indirectly
HE L3
% %
Bt Bt

= 60

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

Principal activities
TEXHB

Stage construction and
arts production
BRBENBMRE

Investment holding
REER

Organise arts
performance, sale
of video productions
and equipment leasing
REBINEL - HEH
SEUERRBEE

Securities trading
EHFEE

Management services
EERE

Design, manufacture
and sale of electroplating
machines and other
automated equipment
Fat  BIERHEBE
B R E At BB R E



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary
g PN

Beijing Haoyuan Power
Equipment Company
Limited
(Sino-Foreign equity
joint venture)

LFERREERD A

(Forag)

Fairway Int’l Limited

Gold Beat Investments
Limited
CERERRAT

Golden Rainbow
Investments Limited
Happy Treasure Limited

EEERAH
Happy Win Resources

Limited

Hovington Agents
Limited

Intech Enterprise (BVI)
Company, Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

aEff, B 3L 3t B

PRC
REARLNE

British Virgin
Islands

REERARES

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin
Islands
EBEERRAHS

Hong Kong
S

British Virgin
Islands
KEERREHS

British Virgin
Islands

KBERRES

British Virgin
Islands

KBERRRS

PR R EE

Issued and
fully paid

up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

BETR
HREBEBRAE
/EmER

US$500,000
500,000 £ 7t

US$1

1E7T

HK$2
28T

US$t

1X7%

HK$2
28T
US$1
1%

US$1

1E7T

US$50,000
50,000 %7t

85
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16. MiE A B @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
ARR BB
RAEE
EMER
Directly Indirectly
BEE ) 4

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

100 =

= 100

= 100

BEFER

Principal activities
TEXK

Design, manufacture
and sale of rectifiers
and other equipment

et BERHER
TR B3R

Investment holding

REER

Property investment
MERE

Property investment

MERE

Timber trading
AMES

Investment holding

REZRK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding
REZR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Big: &3l

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. B D A= @)

Place of

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value
up ordinary of issued capital/

share capital/
registered capital

registered capital
held by the Company

incorporation/ ERTR KAFARHE AT
Name of subsidiary registration BRTBERAR RAHEE Principal activities
MEAREM AEM RS B /EmER HEMER TEEK
Directly Indirectly
HE LEE3
% %
Bott Bok
Intech Machines Taiwan NT$447,400,000 51 - Design, manufacture
Company, Limited =D 447,400,000 #7 & # and sale of wet
(“IML) processing equipment
DENBROERAE Rt - EEREE
(T=g 1) RBAEERE
Intech Machines (BVI) British Virgin US$2,500,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company, Limited Islands 2,500,000 = 7T REEZER
REREBRES
PAL Europe Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Investment holding
(formerly known as Asia BB 2B T REER
Tele-Net Investments
Limited)
(FAIBENBRREFRAR)
PAL Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Money lending
TNEEFBERA A BB 2B T B
PAL Properties British Virgin US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited Islands 1%£7% REZR
REABRES
PAL Sales, Inc. Connecticut, US$1,000 — 51 Sale of electroplating
The United 1,000 £t machines
States of SHE B
America
3B Connecticut /N
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. B D R =R @)

Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value
up ordinary of issued capital/

share capital/

registered capital

Place of registered capital held by the Company
incorporation/ ERTR EARFR/FERT
Name of subsidiary registration BREBRAE BRAHEE Principal activities
i) PN sEf, PRSIt B /EmER & A TEXK
Directly Indirectly
B F:3
% %
Bk Bt
PAL (Sea) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR300,000 - 60 Sale of electroplating
BRAD 300,000 5% machines
HEBHERMRE
PAL Sea Services Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60 Investment holding
(formerly known as World B 100 & T REEZR
Pride Technology Limited)
(AIBRENRERAA)
PAL Service Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR50,002 - 60 Sale of electroplating
BRAR 50,002 5 machines and
spare parts
HEBERMR S
Process Automation British Virgin Islands HK$110,000 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited RBHEBERES 110,000 & 7T REER
Process Automation The United Kingdom GBP1 - 100 Sale of electroplating
(Europe) Limited RE 1R machines
HEBHERMRE
Process Automation Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Design, manufacture and
International Limited B8 (note) sale of electroplating
(“PAIL) 28T machines
DNEERMERD A (RMat) Rt~ BUEERHE
(TEMEE D SEHRMRE
57
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE-_TT=F=HA=+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. B A AR @
Issued and Proportion of
fully paid nominal value
up ordinary of issued capital/
share capital/ registered capital
Place of registered capital held by the Company
incorporation/ ERTR EARAFE#RT
Name of subsidiary registration BREERK IR A E & Principal activities
(g PN R, FR L it B /ERER & A TEXER
Directly Indirectly
HE L3
% %

Process Automation PRC HK$18,000,000 - 100 Design, manufacture and
(Shenzhen) Limited HEARZENE 18,000,000 & 7T sale of electroplating
(Wholly owned foreign machines
enterprise (‘WOFE”)) et HERHEESH

EEBIHM CRIN) BRE
BRAF

(HPEZELE)

Process Automation The United GBP2 - 100 Sale of electroplating

(UK) Limited Kingdom 2 machines
S HESHERM

Prosmart Developments Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Property investment
Limited B 2T MERE

ERERERLF EENZES

Rich Town Properties British Virgin US$2 - 100 Property investment
Limited Islands 2ET MERE

REEBRES

Sky Citi-Link ATNT British Virgin US$1 = 82 Investment holding

(Holdings) Limited Islands E REER
REABRES

Sky Citi-Link Hong Kong HK$2 - 82 Provision of
International Telecom B 2T telecommunication
Limited services

R 35 B R & o RESHRS
BRAF
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary
HEARER

Sky Citi-Link (Great China)
Communication Limited

K (RE) BAARAF

Sky Citi-Link Teleport
Limited
ABEEBARAT

Strength Hope Limited

Vigour Entertainment
Company Limited
BEREFRNA

DERBECRINER A
(WOFE)
(IhEZELZE)

Issued and
fully paid

up ordinary
share capital/

16. {E A BERE @)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

Place of registered capital held by the Company
incorporation/ BRTR AR FFS BT
registration BHEEBRAE BRAHEE
SEf, B3 3t B /EmEX A& A
Directly Indirectly
BE# o
% %

Bt Bk
Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 82
B 10,000 % 7T
British Virgin Islands US$1 = 82
KEERREHS 1E7T
British Virgin Islands US$1 100 =
EEERRES 1%E7
Hong Kong HK$2 - 100
58 28T
PRC US$600,000 - 100
hEARLNE 600,000 % 7T
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Principal activities
TEXK

Provision of
telecommunication
services

REEBHARSE

Property holding
MEER

Investment holding
REER

Organising art
performances, social
functions and sales
of video products

REEIEL

HERPRIE

Design, manufacture
and sale of wet
processing
equipment

et EEREE
BRARERE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

16.

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All active subsidiaries operate in their places of incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion

of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To

give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Note: At 31st March, 2003, PAIL had outstanding 11,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each which were held by Process Automation (BVI) Limited.

The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to

attend or vote at any general meeting of PAIL and practically carry no rights

to participate in any distribution on winding up.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets
Goodwill on acquisition of an associate

ASIATELE-NET AND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION LIMITED

FEiEEEFE
WREERE AR FIELE 2R

60

16. f{E A BERE @)

FRIEETEEEEZWE AR ER
BUALFRTEMBEE 2 -

& 2t

REFELSRNFRNEMNERE  SHEQIH
BEMNEEER -

LRI EZERRTEFELAEBXRERE
EZARRMEBRRE - EEERAH HE /K
BRARIZERNEBRIER °

Kzt - R=—ZET=F=A=+—A8" E,Jﬂ%iﬁaﬁﬁ
EREEI1IBTIZERERELR B
11,000,000 » ZZER B EMHAProcess
Automation (BVI) Limitedi$ 7 ° ZEERZRE
IRFERR 17 2 3578 A B 1 2 M 85 W BRI AR
ERESZAREMRRAGZESIHER
RABREASLRE » UREREATES
BESBEMEE -

17. BE AR R

THE GROUP
FEH

2003 2002
—BE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
B BT
= 3,255,402
= 618,889
= 3,874,291
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE-—FE=-F-HA=+—HIFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. BE QTR @)
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31st March, 2003 are as follows: UTAAREEBHEARR_SE=F=HA=1
—B2#FHE:

Proportion of
nominal value

Place of issued capital
of incorporation/ held by the Group

Name of associate registration rEBESR Principal activities

BE AR EB SR SL b B ERTRAEE FTEXK

Beijing Wan Dian PRC 50% Design, manufacture and sale

Company Limited of wind generators
(“BJWD”)

(Sino-Foreign equity

joint venture)

EtRBEEREEAH REARALANE 50% Rat > RHEREE
(Tt=m=BE ) [B 2 BHAE
(FIEE)

Sparkling Stream Western 32.8% Inactive

International Limited Samoa
7 R 55 32.8% EEFILEREE
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BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

7. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continuead)

The goodwill on acquisition of associates arose on the acquisition of BJWD

18.

in 1998. Movements of goodwill during the year are as follows:

COST
At 1st April, 2002 and 31st March, 2003

AMORTISATION

At 1st April, 2002

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised for the year

At 31st March, 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2003

At 31st March, 2002

BAE

R-ZBER-_FNA-BR=-FZE=F=A=+—H

i
R-ZFEZ-FHMA—R
RNEEERE
RNEERZDRE

R=-ZFE=5=R=+—H

FIREE
R=BE=F=A=+—H

R-ZZZE-H=A=1+—H

In the light of persistent poor operating results of BJWD and the

uncertainty of turn-around of its performance in the future, the directors

considered that net book value of goodwill at 31st March, 20083 is

irrecoverable and, accordingly, impairment loss of HK$557,000 is

recognised in the income statement.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investment securities shown as non-current
assets:
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss
recognised

Other investments shown as current assets:
Listed shares, at market value

ASIATELE-NET AND TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION LIMITED

2IRFERBEE :
ZRFRE
LMD - RAENK
R ZE S

2IBRBEEZRE :
Emgte - miE
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7. BEQRES @

18.

WEEERE A REEE IR - A ANFREL
REBERFELE  FAREZEBEIWT :

THE GROUP
rEE

HK$
B

928,333

309,444
61,889
557,000

928,333

618,889

ERd R EEREREZ=YMRNARRE
ﬁ%ﬁ%*%%'§$ ARR—BE=F=A
=t+—-BNBEERIFESEERD - Bt R
Wy 35 B ) #E 52 ORI {E.557,00078 7T

EHERE
THE GROUP
EX T
2003 2002
—EE=F e
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
2,900,178 8,548,703
30,233,864 63,384,450
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Disclosures pursuant to Section 129(2) of the Hong Kong Companies

18. FHERE @)
REFBLAGRAIE 120K AETHR

Ordinance in respect of other investments are as follows: BEZRBEWMT ¢
Proportion of
nominal value of
Country Class of issued capital held
Name of investment of incorporation share held by the Company
ERARFEE BT
REEBBER FE AR S 2 B R BERGER RAEEZBD L
MAE Holdings Limited Bermuda Ordinary 3.96%

ZEEEBRATA BRE EER
19. OTHER ASSETS 19. HhEE
THE GROUP
AEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
/gf /5717
Loans receivable — non-current portion (Note 23) FEWEFR (FEENEAZRHG) (KfaE 23) 1,926,446 2,185,555
Trade debtors — non-current portion (Note 24) FEUWERIE (SEENHAZRD) (Mfat 24) 3,675,465 -
5,601,911 2,185,555
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 20. BB AR Z™IE
THE COMPANY
b N

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
/gf /5717
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHY B A B 2 FIB 201,041,194 184,723,079
Allowance provided B (120,380,000) -
80,661,194 184,723,079

The amounts are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
amounts included approximately HK$60 million (2002: HK$34 million)
which bears interest at Hong Kong prime rate and approximately HK$58
million (2002: nil) which bears interest at 4% per annum (2002: nil), the
remaining balance is non-interest bearing.
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ZHOEABREAREEEERE - ZREFY
60,000,000 7t (=== = : 34,000,000/8
7o) DA B B A ZE 5 E FI 2 F14958,000,000
BT (CEE-F &) UFHERNEFERE
(ZZZ2_F ' \) > HfREATEKEFE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &
THE GROUP
AEH

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECHF
HK$ HK$
ET BT
Raw materials B 44,585,931 43,338,331
Work in progress K 14,561,458 18,892,059
Finished goods X 3,202,857 7,105,599
62,350,246 69,335,989
At 31st March, 2003, included above are raw materials of HK$9,450,992 R-ZEZE=F=HA=+—8  SFLEEMH
(2002: HK$11,721,618) and work in progress of HK$1,190,646 (2002: nil) 49,450,992/ 8 T (ZEE=F : 11,721,618

which are carried at net realisable values. 7o) RERMm$E1,190,6468 T (ZTT = F ©

) REASEFEAR -

At 31st March, 2002, finished goods of HK$2,456,437 were carried at net REZZ2-F=ZA=+—H ' fim2456,437%8
realisable values. TR R R E AR ©
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR 22 EW(EMBEFZBESHNRE
CONTRACT WORK
THE GROUP
rEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Contracts in progress at REERAZEEREHNIRE

the balance sheet date:

Contract costs incurred BHEAR 55,517,366 46,131,353

Recognised profits less recognised losses ERREFRE BREE 5,210,798 4,828,134
60,728,164 50,959,487

Progress billings REENFRIEA (27,945,149) (17,497,026)
32,783,015 33,462,461

Represented by: (SR

Due from customers included in current assets Z3EARBEE 2 EIREF KA 33,851,875 34,527,433

Due to customers included in current liabilites Z5BREEBZENEFRIE (1,068,860) (1,064,972)
32,783,015 33,462,461
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22,

23.

24.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK (continued)

At the balance sheet date, there were no retention monies held by
customers for contract work performed. At 31st March, 2003, advances
received from customers for contract work performed amounted to
HK$30,774,566 (2002: HK$23,470,113) which were included in creditors,
bills payable and accrued charges.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

The following is the maturity profile of loans receivable at balance sheet
date:

R={EAREE

Repayable within 3 months

Repayable after 3 months but within 6 months R ={E A ZER<E A REE
RABAZEBR—FEREE

Repayable after 6 months but within 1 year

Repayable after 1 year R—F&EE

The loans receivable which are repayable after one year are included in
other assets in note 19. All loans receivable bear interests at commercial
rates.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade debtors B 5 EWERR
EWEE

HAARM K AN RIE

Bills receivables
Other debtors and prepayments

Less: Trade debtors — non-current portion W BESREWER (GERENIERMD)
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“REC=FER

22 EW (B BEFZEZEANRE @

REEEBEXRAER  TEEFHENIREM
BFEREL -H-_TZE=F=A=+—H0 %
FIREHN2FEFFAE30,774,5668 T (==
ZTF :23,470,113587T) » A ATENIR

B BENRBEREREA] -

23. EWRER

UTAREESBEREE B RBERE BE

W

THE GROUP
2003 2002
—EET=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
B BT
9,141,234 28,592,533
71,206 78,164
121,727 158,059
9,334,167 28,828,756
1,926,446 2,185,555
11,260,613 31,014,311

R—FREENEBWERIIAME192HME
ER ° A EWERE L —REZEF R EF

Bo

24. BWARE ST E RAMN KR

THE GROUP
2003 2002
—ET=F —ETCHF
HKS$ HK$
E BT
119,246,227 82,825,012
13,342,969 12,874,542
11,330,350 21,540,161
143,919,546 117,239,715
(3,675,465) -
140,244,081 117,239,715
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24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 24, EWERIE - ST RENKIE @)
Trade debtors which are repayable after one year are included in other R—FREZNE S EUERRIAMEE19ME
assets in note 19. HEEMR °
The Group allows a general credit period of one month to its trade EEGATESREPZREERPARSE—
customers except construction contracts where the Group allows stage BA  MBESYNZEFRARESHNZTER
payments. In general, credit will only be offered to customers in accordance EENR —RBERT GERSREEFN
with their financial creditabilities. BIEREMET o
The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors as at the reporting date: UTARBEAEZEBRRZEIBRDONE :

2003 2002

—BRE=F —BRERCE

HK$ HK$

T BT

Current K 2 5 49,628,277 26,778,572
Overdue by: B

0 - 60 days 0—60H 44,035,900 20,999,499

61 - 120 days 61— 120 A 3,626,483 14,079,164

121 - 180 days 121 — 180 H 14,025,854 6,397,045

> 180 days >180 H 7,929,713 14,570,732

119,246,227 82,825,012

25. CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 25. EfIRIE - ERNEBRERER

CHARGES
THE GROUP
rEH
2003 2002
—BRE=F —BRERCE
HK$ HK$
T BT
Trade creditors B 5 EIR™ 82,696,850 65,735,442
Bills payable B EE 13,932,568 3,968,102
Other creditors and accrued charges HiENRARBREA 81,661,595 79,924,046
178,291,013 149,627,590
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PR R EE

25. CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED

26.

27.

28.

CHARGES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors as at the reporting

date:

0 — 60 days

61 — 120 days
121 — 180 days
> 180 days

LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR

The amount of the Group is unsecured, bears interest at Hong Kong prime

0—-60H
61— 120 H

121 — 180 H
>180 H

rate and has been repaid subsequent to the balance sheet date.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts of the Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

have no fixed terms of repayment.

SHARE CAPITAL

Share of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1st April, 2002, 31st March, 2002 and
31st March, 2003

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st April, 2001
Exercise of warrants
Issue of shares
Shares repurchased and cancelled

At 31st March, 2002 and 31st March, 2003

TN AR ERA R

EREE0.01 BT

ERE

—EET-FmA-—8 -

BBITRAR :

25. ENRIE - BENRBREARER @

UTHRHE R EZENRRZEINE !

2003 2002
—ge=% —EE=F
HK$ HK$

#Br BT
33,935,364 28,707,262
17,243,736 14,977,555
23,539,204 12,235,675
7,978,546 9,814,950
82,696,850 65,735,442

26. EEEX

REREHEBHREE -

27. EATHE D RIRIE

ZRERERR  REREEH

28. JRA

—E2-£mA-A

IR BERE BT
BATHIR
(o] 88 A% 69 B &t 85

1A

P |
[

1
[1l o

A
hulll

-+
|
m
m X

“REC=FER

ZREREER  MEURBRERFEHE

BRIRM

Number

of shares Amount
g 4= waEE

HK$

E T

20,000,000,000 200,000,000
5,112,908,000 51,129,080
40,000 400
500,000,000 5,000,000
(83,680,000) (836,800)
5,529,268,000 55,292,680
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29. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES 29. BEBRES

One of the Company’s share options schemes, was adopted on 2nd
January, 1991 (the “Original Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive to directors and eligible staff. Under the Original Scheme, the
directors may grant options to executive directors and employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The subscription price of shares under the Original Scheme shall be
calculated at the discretion of the directors at an amount not more than a
20% discount to the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for one or more board
lots of shares on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option provided that in no circumstances shall the subscription
price be less than the par value of a share. No consideration is payable
on the acceptance of an option. The aggregate number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted pursuant to the Original Scheme
to any individual shall not exceed 10% of the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Original Scheme
and any other schemes. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Original Scheme (including shares
issued pursuant to options exercised under the Original Scheme and
shares in respect of which any options are outstanding) shall at all times
when aggregated with any shares subject to other schemes be limited to
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The Original Scheme remained in force for a period of ten years from the
date of its adoption and was expired on 1st January, 2001.

Under the rules of the Original Scheme, options are exercisable from the
date options are granted to the earlier of the third anniversary of the date
of grant and the expiry date of the scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 6th September,
2000 (the “Resolution”), the rule with regard to the exercisable period has
amended under which options are exercisable before the third anniversary
from the date of options are granted or the later date as the directors may
determine but not being later than the tenth anniversary from the date
the options are granted.
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AARHp—IRE R BRES S (R 81)
R—AN—F—B-BERH SEESHES
REEKRET - RIEFRGE > E=TEAQH
FEEAMBARZITESRESRHUESL
BRE - URBAQRRYD - RS R 2K

RBEHESHEEE  HITETEZRNE
ERHELEREBHAAERSH  —FR
L2 R ERER T B RERHRZRDF
B mEZ20% @ HERMEMIER TRBERSE
BERROEE - ERELBRERBENSE
ARAE - RERE S EMEBA LR T 2E
EERESR 2ROBEREZRRERE
REMEMGT SRS TERE 2B EBRER
BEE 210% ° RIFFFT AR H 2B LB
RS Kz RID B (BHERERFEIETE
TRELBREMRTZRND - REBEEMAHE
RIEZBEBREZRD) ERH M 8
RAEMBRGDMEMEBSRERA QBB KT
BR13 2 10% °

Rt &8I E R BBET T FHESEER - 1
R=-ZZ-—F—H—HEm-

RERE - BLBRETHARE 2 AHER
HEME=AFKktEzZERR CUREED
E)RTE - RER-ZZZFAASBER
ZEBRRASHABB2EBAZR (DRZE
xR BRTEDHEZFIASHELER @ Bt
BREVTHRELBRERL ZBHE=FAFH
FEFREZREZAH (ETATEREHBR
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B —_ZTE=F=A=1—HULFE

29. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (continued) 29. BEBRESE @

Pursuant to the revised Original Scheme, the Company had granted
options on 14th November, 2000 to the following directors of the Company,
exercisable at any time from 17th November, 2000 and during the
employment with the Company and its subsidiaries to 16th November,
2008:

Name

s

Kwok Yan Lam
EER

Kwok Hing Lam
EEE

Apart from the above, no options had been granted to or exercised by
any other directors or employees of the Group during the years ended
31st March, 2002 and 2003 or outstanding at the balance sheet dates.

Pursuant to the Resolution, the Company also adopted a new share
options scheme (the “New Scheme”) which became effective on 1st
January, 2001. The rules of the New Scheme are the same as the revised
Original Scheme and will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption.

69

TN AR AR AR —BRECFER

RELIETRE S ARAR=ZZTEF+
—ATHHBURTARBDESRHBRE - 7
H-ZEZF+ At tHEREE-ZTZT=
F+—AT A BRLZEREAAFARHEMEL
A HAREI BE S T BAAT

Number of share
option outstanding
at 1st April, 2001,
31st March, 2002

and 31st March, 2003
R-ZEZE-FWMA—H

Exercise —EE-F=A=t—-HR

price per share —EE=F=A=+-—H
BRITEE RITEZBEBRESE
HK$ HK$

BT T

0.056 43,000,000

0.056 43,000,000
86,000,000

BREXFriE  BE_ZSE_FR_ZFZ=

ZSA=1+-BLEEE AEEZEAHMES
NESWEER HRITEEABRE AL
BERAERTEZBRE -

RIBRZBER  AND B IR — I8 IRt 3
(T#stE)) BT —F—A—BER
=t 8z R AEMETT A 8I18ME - 3B HE KRR
RSttt FHBSEER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

29. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES (continued)
Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company had granted options on 30th
August, 2001 to the following directors of the Company and the employees,
exercisable at any time from 7th September, 2001 and during the
employment with the Company and its subsidiaries to 6th September,

29.

BRBRESTSE @

REHE AREAR=F2-FNA=1H
ERLEEBRETTIRDAEERES
ZEEABEREITR-ZZ-—FAALHER
EEZZTNFNANHLEZERAARME

2004: B 18 2 =) o2 A P BB A 5 DAAT A
Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise Outstanding  Granted during Outstanding Lapsed during Outstanding
price at  the year ended at the year ended at
Name per share 1st April, 2001 31st March, 2002 31st March, 2002 31st March, 2003 31st March, 2003
R-EZ2-F RBE-ZZ=F R-ZEBZ-F WBE-ZE=HF R-ZEE=F
mA—H =H=+-—H =A=+-H =H=+-H =H=+-H
®E BRTHEE I8 AR AT LEFEERE I8 AR AT 2 EFERHU i8] RAT €
HK$
B
Directors
5=
Kwok Yan Lam 0.053 - 114,500,000 114,500,000 - 114,500,000
EER
Kwok Hing Lam 0.053 - 114,500,000 114,500,000 - 114,500,000
EEE
Others
Hth
Other employees 0.053 - 50,140,000 50,140,000 (10,000,000) 40,140,000
Hitfg g
- 279,140,000 279,140,000 (10,000,000) 269,140,000

No share options were granted or exercised under the New Scheme during
the year ended 31st March, 2003.

At 31st March, 2003, the aggregate number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the revised Original Scheme and New
Scheme was 355.14 million, representing 6.4% (2002: 6.6%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

No consideration was received during the year ended 31st March, 2002
from the Company’s directors and employees for taking up the options

granted.

No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value
of options granted during the year ended 31st March, 2002.
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R-ZZE=F=A=+—H  RELBITR:
BIRFTEARECEEBRES R ZRDES
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30. RESERVES

THE GROUP

Balance at 1st April, 2001

Exchange difference arising on
translation of operations of
overseas subsidiaries

Realised upon the deemed disposal
of a subsidiary

Share premium cancelled on share
repurchased

New issue of shares for acquisition
of a subsidiary

Exercise of warrants

Net loss for the year

Balance at 1st April, 2002
Exchange difference arising on
translation of operations of

overseas subsidiaries
Net loss for the year

Balance at 31st March, 2003

PR R EE

30. f#fE
Property Currency Retained
Share revaluation Legal translation profit
premium reserve reserves reserve (deficit) Total
14) L/ EE BERTE & &)& A
R ERr &k 10 (B8) &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT BT BT
AEE
R-EE-F0NA—H 326,385,008 39,144,791 16,225,305  (7,499,075) 5,536,238 379,792,267
ME N E A =)
ZEREHR
= = - (369,375) - (369,375)
REHEHRE QR
KER - - (29,859) 23,831 29,859 23,831
ElERAZ
B (3,331,162) - - - - (3,331,162)
W B B S 20 R) AT B 4T
23 30,000,000 = = = - 30,000,000
TERRER 7,720 -~ = = = 7,720
rEEEE - - - - (132,376,975) (132,376,975)
RZZEZ-FNA—H 353,061,566 39,144,791 16,195,446  (7,844,619)(126,810,878) 273,746,306
BEBIHEDR
ZEREH
- - - (3,580,715) - (3,580,715)
rEEFE - - - - (157,796,090) (157,796,090)
R-EE=fF
=A=+-—-H 353,061,566 39,144,791 16,195,446 (11,425,334)(284,606,968) 112,369,501

At 31st March, 2003, included in the above deficit was a deficit of
HK$8,122,699 (2002: HK$4,879,672) representing the Group’s share of
post-acquisition deficit of associates.
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71
—EZ=EFR

REZBZ=F=A=+—0 KELKELEATF

BB 1% 2 E188,122,6998 T (=&

TTHE

4,879,672/ T) EBIEE L LEIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. #E @
Share Contributed
premium surplus Deficit Total
B 13 5 B iR AR B8 &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT #ET HET
THE COMPANY VNN
Balance at 1st April, 2001 R-ZEZ—FHWA—H 326,385,008 29,510,207 (128,373,627) 227,521,588
Share premium cancelled B B IR 7 2 35 18 5 66
on shares repurchased (3,331,162) - - (3,331,162)
New issue of shares for UL BB B B A B P BE 1T 3T IR
acquisition of a subsidiary 30,000,000 = = 30,000,000
Exercise of warrants TR R EF 7,720 - - 7,720
Net loss for the year REEEFIE = — (71,374,616)  (71,374,616)
Balance at 1st April, 2002 R-ZEZE-FWA—H 353,061,566 29,510,207  (199,748,243) 182,823,530
Net loss for the year REEEE - —  (128,337,124) (128,337,124)
Balance at 31st March, 2003 R=-ZE=4#=H=+—H 353,061,566 29,510,207  (328,085,367) 54,486,406

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition, less dividends distributed
from pre-reorganisation reserves of the subsidiaries. Under The
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company
is available for distribution to shareholders.

The articles of incorporation of IML, a subsidiary of the Company, provide
that 10% of its annual net income be set aside as a legal reserve until an
amount equal to its paid up capital is reached. No profit was transferred
to legal reserves for the years ended 31st March, 2002 and 2003 as IML
incurred losses for the years. In prior year, in accordance with statutory
requirements in the PRC, a subsidiary registered in the PRC had
transferred a certain per cent. of its annual net income from retained profits
to legal reserves. No such transfer is required for the years ended 31st
March, 2002 and 2003 as that subsidiary incurred losses for the years.
These legal reserves are not considered to be distributable.

At 31st March, 2003, the Group’s deficit includes an aggregate amount
of HK$37,716,809 (2002: HK$37,716,809) which was capitalised as share
capital by IML.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

31. BORROWINGS

Borrowings comprise the following:

Bank overdrafts
Trust receipt loans
Other bank loans
Other loan

Secured
Unsecured

The borrowings are repayable within a period:

Not exceeding one year or on demand
More than one year but not
exceeding two years
More than two years but not
exceeding five years
More than five years

Total
Amount due within one year classified as
current liabilities

Balance due after one year

BEEHE :

g
IR

PR R EE

BEZERBUT :

TEE—F A EE
—FHEBTEBME

MEULEFTBEBREF

AENE

—FRIBEE R
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31. &

THE GROUP
rE
2003 2002
—ge=% —EE=F
HK$ HK$
Ex T
440,272 1,136,986
10,101,191 6,642,419
78,679,245 76,202,504
7,224,750 10,837,125
96,445,458 94,819,034
67,231,220 32,451,386
29,214,238 62,367,648
96,445,458 94,819,034
68,059,273 54,969,476
2,836,298 6,561,234
11,194,635 12,556,647
14,355,252 20,731,677
96,445,458 94,819,034
(68,059,273) (54,969,476)

28,386,185

39,849,558
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. RERIE
THE GROUP
rEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —EE_F
HK$ HK$
ET HET
Balance at beginning of the year FNEE 357,000 1,286,903
Credit to the income statement = FE W 2 B 7
for the year (note 10) (K&t 10) (162,000) (929,903)
Balance at end of the year FRER 195,000 357,000
The major components of the provision for deferred taxation and the total CRBELHERABEELENBEEE (BE)
potential deferred tax liability (asset) unprovided are as follows: ZEERMWMT :
Unprovided/
unrecognised
Provided deferred deferred tax
tax liability (asset) liability (asset)
EREZIEL RiBE RER
HEAE (BE) ZHEEE (BE)
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BE=F —EEF —EBE=HF —EEC-HF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET BT Er ET
THE GROUP rE
Tax effect of timing differences B THERELRE 2R EFE
due to:
Excess of tax allowances over FIEERBHITESE
depreciation 195,000 1,969,000 623,540 2,085,601
Estimated tax losses RBAZBIEER - (1,557,000)  (31,227,890) (17,975,318)
Revaluation surplus on NEELBEZERE
properties - - 6,500,000 6,500,000
Unrealised loss on other HtRERSREE
investments - - (4,182,523) —
Others Hit - (55,000)  (4,672,623)  (3,041,834)
195,000 357,000  (32,959,496)  (12,431,551)
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 32.

The components of the net unrecognised deferred tax credit for the year
are as follows:

Tax effect of timing differences due to: ATIEREEREZBBLE
Excess of depreciation over tax allowance MERBERERESR

Tax losses arising HIB 2 BIEEE

Unrealised loss on other investments Hih R EREREE

Others Hith

The Group’s properties in the PRC are held as office and factory premises.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the Group does not have any
intention to dispose of these properties in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, no deferred taxation has been provided on the revaluation
surplus of these properties.

The surplus arising on revaluation of the Group’s properties in Hong Kong
does not constitute a timing difference for taxation purposes as any profits
realised on their subsequent disposal would not be subject to taxation.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial statements
in respect of tax losses and other timing differences available to offset
future profits as it is not certain that the tax losses and other timing
differences will be utilised in the foreseeable future.

THE COMPANY
The Company did not have any significant unprovided deferred taxation
at the balance sheet date.
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MBI (@)
REERBRBEEREBEEMT

THE GROUP
rEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —E2E-F
HKS$ HK$
Ex BT
1,462,061 534,909
13,252,572 9,787,687
4,182,523 =
1,630,789 3,041,834
20,527,945 13,364,430

FAEBEFEZNXERERFEREER
A EBRAAEBESEA R ZARRHE
L2z - Bt - ¥Rz EA BRI EBEERE
FEFLIF o

EEBZMECEENEE 2 BERERS LI
THEREREZR  FAUEYEHERSZER
A 1 B AR BLIE o

— TR BRSSO 2 B IR A 18 3 R A B 75 BR
BhRIARNELEREEE  AREARATREE
AR ZERZBBBEREEERFZETES
A e
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REEEBEREEAAQRALEEMEKNZR
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_ZTE=F=ZFA=1—-—HULFE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

33. MEMERE

THE GROUP
rE
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BREHAEMRK BEAENRZEE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BE=F —ERER-F —EE=F —BRERCE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT BT
Amounts payable under finance 1R¥5RLE 1H & B FEE ¢
leases:
Within one year —FR 540,684 961,054 483,660 857,001
In the second to fifth year ¥_ZHF (BEEEME)
inclusive 320,730 749,597 284,068 675,169
Atfter five years BEELE - 46,248 - 45,507
861,414 1,756,899 767,728 1,577,677
Less: Future finance charges &l : B REE A 93,686 179,222 - -
Present value of lease HERIERE
obligations 767,728 1,577,677 767,728 1,577,677
Less: Amount due for —FREEERE
settlement within one year E@;ﬁiﬁ]ﬁ{;ﬁ?zﬂ)
(shown under current
liabilities) (483,660) (857,001)
Amount due for settlement —FREEERE
after one year 284,068 720,676

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under
finance leases. The average lease term is 3 years. For the year ended
31st March, 2003, the average effective borrowing rates was approximately
3% per annum. Interest rate is fixed at the contract date. All leases are
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement has been entered into
for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s
charge over the leased assets.
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

34. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 4. WIE—RMHEL R
In prior year, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of R EFE > A& E LL40,100,00058 oA 1E U i
Strength Hope Limited for a consideration of HK$40,100,000. This Strength Hope Limited 2 100%E, 21T 7N o Lt
acquisition has been accounted for by the acquisition method of WERBEWBESNAFRAAR - ARBELEZHE
accounting. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition £540,099,4838 L c BHE—ZEZT-_F=A=
was HK$40,099,483. The loss after taxation of Strength Hope Limited and +—H » Strength Hope Limited & H [ & 2 7]
its subsidiaries included in the consolidated income statement for the year TGRS W R Z R 2 E518 24,0008 T ©

ended 31st March, 2002 amounted to HK$4,000.

2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
B ET
NET ASSETS ACQUIRED WiEEEFE
Bank balances RATAEBR - 517
Goodwill maE - 40,099,483
Total consideration BRE - 40,100,000
Satisfied by: ZHAR
Shares allotted e iz - 35,000,000
Investments in securities - BEHRE—
other investments HthxE - 5,100,000
- 40,100,000
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: ERWBZRESRNFE
Bank balances acquired Wi bE = R 1T 48R - 517
35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 35. EXFBRERS
During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in FR - AEEREREREET0,982/8 T (=
respect of assets with a total capital value at the inception of the leases TET 4 1,655,032 ) 2EET LRER
of HK$70,982 (2002: HK$1,655,032). Bk o

77
TN AR ERA R “REC=FER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BBk

For the Year Ended 31st March, 2003
BE—TT=F=FA=1+—HIFE

36. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not BEME BERREZ
provided in the financial statements in 2RI AERR IR K
respect of property, plant and equipment fELEBEZ2EREX

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented properties which fall
due as follows:

36. &
THE GROUP
AEM

2003

—EE=F

HK$

BT

64,000

467,000

REEH - AEERBEBEYE 2 T A HEE

T

ERAMART I G 2&ENREEN

2003 2002

—EE=F —EECF

HK$ HK$

B BT

Within one year —FR 525,096 1,041,312
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZELF (BEMEEEEAR) - 712,596
525,096 1,753,908

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its
office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of one to two years
(2002: one to two years) and rentals are fixed for the leased period.

THE COMPANY
The Company did not have any significant capital or operating lease

REHONREASERER I ENERNT 2
HE  HHMEERERLAN-—ERF (S2FZ
F:—2WF)  MESREEHRAERET

8o

2N

ARBREE BN EEMERERHEERY

commitments at the balance sheet date. TRIE o
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. RARARE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEME AN
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE=F —EERCF ZEE=F —ERCF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT B BT
Extent of banking facilities MEBARCEEMAILHAARAF
utilised by subsidiaries and ERZBRTEESRE
guaranteed by the Company
- = 12,688,555 10,444,186
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BE—_TE=F=HA=1+—HIFE

38.

39.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group has pledged its land and buildings in the PRC, Taiwan and
the United Kingdom with an aggregate net book value of approximately
HK$126 million (2002: HK$87 million) and bank deposits of approximately
HK$0.3 million (2002: HK$3.6 million) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The employees of IML have participated in the Central Pension Scheme
operated by the Taiwan government. IML is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll to the Central Pension
Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Central Pension Scheme is their required contributions under the
Central Pension Scheme.

Since 1st December, 2000, the Group has operated pension schemes
under the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately in an independently
managed fund. The Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as incurred.

The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
state-managed schemes in the PRC based on a certain percentage of
the monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference to
their basic salaries on retirement and their length of service in accordance
with the relevant government regulations. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to these retired staff.

In addition, a subsidiary operates funded defined benefit pension scheme
(the “ORSO Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and liabilities of the
ORSO Scheme was carried out at 31st March, 2003. The main actuarial
assumptions used were as follows:
Discount rate 5.5% per annum
Expected return on ORSO Scheme assets 7.0% per annum

Expected salary increase rate 4.5% per annum
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38.

39.

BEEEF

REE S IREFES $£4126,000,0005 7T (=
ZTE 4 : 87,000,000/ 7T) 2HEH  BER
LR+ #th 2 42 5 3 [E) 4R 1T 12 ;X 49.300,0005% 7T
(ZZZ =% : 3,600,000/ 7t) IKIFFRIT - 1
ARAEERMHE-RBITEER KT o

RKEFEE
DEZESZSHRGERFERE 2P RBAEET
B -DEANHEMBTERENRN2ETED
te@ iz B ET EME K - EREFE
& o ANEBB AR RBMNE B2 ME— R
TR MR R R B 5T BIIRETH ALK -

B-ZZZF+-A—HMHK - AEERER
FIE RS IURO 2R KRR - BEMA
BECEREESHRASHE (REEF
B - BESHECEERBYEREES DM
BA - AEERZRASERESHBRKAZ5%
ZRIEEERFIREEHER - HRRELR
£ W a5 BRHBR o

HEzTENEARRAREREREEAH 25
FTEILEPE R RERT LR - £
RABEFES - BEEERRERBNBFRNZ
B2ERSRNE 2ERF SRR FHMET

IZREKE o

o —MEARBMAESEREEEE -
HEFBBARAEEEI (TORSOFH ) &%t
S EERAEHCEEIREA  &atdlz
EEF A AAZTEAERZEEA -

HORSOFt Bz 2 EEHBETEMAZHE
BERER-ZZ=F=A=1— BT - it
RANEZRERRWT :

= H%55%
ORSO&t £ = 2 78 B B 3R HE7.0%
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continued)
Amount recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of
the ORSO Scheme is as follows:

Current service cost B Al 2 AR 7 B <
Interest cost F B R4S
Expected return on plan assets FrEEE ZFERE R

REZZ=FRIAZBEEE
REERF MR ZTHEAR
EBASRE

Transitional liability recognised in 2003
Administrative cost and group life premium
deducted from contribution

Expense recognised in the consolidated RGERRRERZAX

income statement

The charge for the year has been included in staff costs.

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from the

39. RIRBRIFE @

RERE IR BR N FORSOR 2 Frie 2 = EEE N
T

2003 2002
—EE=F —EEHF
HK$ HK$

T BT
153,000 822,000
88,000 -
(7,000) -
2,116,000 -
11,000 -
2,361,000 822,000

FAXHEFABEI A -

REBEFORSOR & 2 EEELE - WEFFA

Group’s obligations in respect of the ORSO Scheme is as follows: REEEBBERZEBENT :
2003 2002
—EE=F —EECF
HK$ HK$
T JE T
Present value of the obligations EEZEE 951,000 2,292,000
Fair value of plan assets STEEEZARERE (25,000) (176,000)
Unrecognised actuarial gains RERZBEERE 57,000 -
Unrecognised transitional liability KERZBEEE - (2,116,000)

Current liability recognised in the consolidated RiFEEEEBRERZ
balance sheet nREEE 983,000 -
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (continued)

40.

Movements in the net liability in the current year were as follows:

Opening net liability

Expense as above

Contributions paid by employer, including
administrative cost and group life prem
that are deducted from contribution

Closing net liability

HUMaEFR

iz 53

BEXMZHR - BREEEK

ium HHRZ TR R EE

ASRE

HREEFHE

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group disposed of certain listed

investments at a loss of approximately HK$18 million. The aggregate

carrying value of these investments at 31st March, 2003 amounted to

approximately HK$21 million.
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39.

40.

RAKBERETE @)
FRAEFEZEDNT

2003 2002
—2¥=F —BBCF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

2,361,000 =

(1,378,000) =

983,000 =

REHBSBE

FHAR AEBHEET LHRE BEY
18,000,000/ 7T - ZERER-"ZZT=F=A
=+t — B ZARMEEXN%21,000,000/8 7T °



